EDUCATION BOARD

Thursday, 10 November 2016

Minutes of the meeting of the Education Board held at Committee Room - 2nd Floor West Wing, Guildhall on Thursday, 10 November 2016 at 3.00 pm

Present

Members:

Deputy Catherine McGuinness (Chairman) Christopher Hayward

Henry Colthurst (Deputy Chairman)
Deputy John Bennett
Randall Anderson
Sheriff & Alderman Peter Estlin
Ian Seaton
Tim Campbell
Veronica Wadley
Ann Holmes

Sheriff & Alderman William Russell

Officers:

Alistair MacLellan - Town Clerk's Department
Stephanie Basten - Town Clerk's Department
Mark Jarvis - Chamberlain's Department

Anne Pietsch - Comptroller & City Solicitor's Department
Emily Rimington - Comptroller & City Solicitor's Department
Ade Adetosoye - Director of Community and Children's Services

Mark Emmerson - Education Strategy Director
Gerald Mehrtens - Community & Children's Services
Jeanne Barnard - Community & Children's Services
Tizzy Keller - Community & Children's Services

1. **APOLOGIES**

Apologies were received from The Rt Hon The Lord Mayor, The Lord Mountevans, Stuart Fraser, Virginia Rounding, Roy Blackwell and Helen Sanson.

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA

Deputy Catherine McGuinness declared an interest in Item 14 (Grant Funding for Christ's Hospital and King Edward's School Witley) and noted she would pass the Chair to Henry Colthurst for that item.

Randall Anderson, Alderman Peter Estlin, Christopher Hayward and Ian Seaton declared an interest in Item 14.

3. MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting held on 15 September 2016 were approved as a correct record.

Matters Arising

City of London Academies Trust Deputy Chairman

The Chairman noted that COLAT would be appointing a Deputy Chairman in the room of Henry Colthurst at its December meeting.

3.1 Action Sheet

The action sheet was received. In response to a request, the Town Clerk agreed to seek a date for the Annual Governor conference as soon as possible, on the understanding that it should be convened from April 2017.

RECEIVED

4. EDUCATION STRATEGY UPDATE REPORT

Members received an Education Strategy Update report of the Director of Community and Children's Services and the following points were made.

- The School Visits Fund had been very successful to date.
- Tower Bridge, a member-body of the Learning and Engagement Forum, had recently been awarded the Sandford Award 2016 for Heritage Education.
- TechCity and Fintech should be included in the employability theme of the strategy.
- Consideration should be given to apprenticeships given recent research suggested apprenticeships did not necessarily lead to long term employment. In response the Director of Community and Children's Services noted that a paper on apprenticeships would come to the Board at its January meeting.
- The Government was consulting on the Apprenticeship Levy next month, and the City should consider making a representation.

In closing the item, the Education Strategy Director provided an update on recent activity by the City of London Academies Trust in his capacity as Chief Executive Officer of the Trust. He noted that Highgate Hill had received 249 applications for 190 places. The school was an excellent example of partnership between Islington Primary and City of London School for Girls. Members made the following comments.

- The mix of independent schools and academies in the City's education offer was felt to be a strength.
- The City should consider applying the expression 'Family of City Schools' to any school to which it appointed governors.

RECEIVED

5. EDUCATION TO EMPLOYMENT UPDATE

Members received an update report of the Director of Economic Development on education to employment and the following points were made.

- There was potential for the Economic Development Office to include the Livery and further corporates in its existing employability work.
- The Board should seek to influence City businesses to offer more work experience.
- The Town Clerk agreed to circulate a copy of the Livery in Education 2016.
- A further employability update should come back to the Board at a future meeting.

RECEIVED

6. UN-VALIDATED PROGRESS DATA FOR CITY SCHOOLS 2016

Members received a report of the Director of Community and Children's Services on un-validated progress data for City Schools 2016. Members noted the high levels of progress, and suggested that the provision of similar data from the independent schools would provide a useful overview across the Family of City Schools.

RECEIVED

7. CAPITAL PROJECTS STATUS REPORT

Members received an update report of the Director of Community and Children's Services on capital projects. The Education Strategy Director noted that Shoreditch Park had now been upgraded to Green.

RECEIVED

8. **REVENUE BUDGETS 2017/2018**

Members considered a report of the Chamberlain and the Director of Community and Children's Services on Revenue Budgets 2017/18. The Chamberlain noted that there was a £275k uplift consisting of increased funding for new City academies. The Chairman added that consideration was being given – out with the revenue budgets for 2017/18, for further monies being made available to the City of London Academies Trust to allow the Trust to build up a reserve.

RESOLVED, that

- The revenue budgets 2017/18 be submitted to the Finance Committee;
- The Chamberlain be authorised to revise those budgets to allow for further implications arising from any specific allocation of funding for academies and Central Support Services.

9. CITY OF LONDON ACADEMIES TRUST LOCAL GOVERNING BODY GOVERNANCE STRUCTURES, AND APPOINTING GOVERNORS

Members considered a report of the Director of Community and Children's Services on the City of London Academies Trust Local Governing Body governance structures and the appointment of governors. Members confirmed that they were content for the report to be submitted to the City of London Academies Trust, and the following comments were made.

- In developing a pool of candidates for governing body vacancies, the City should be mindful of the Livery and City businesses. One avenue for identifying Livery candidates would be the Livery Schools Link.
- Any non-Common Council members who were candidates for City sponsor appointments should undergo some form of interview and evaluation.
- Each Local Governing Body should make explicit what skills and experience they were looking for in potential candidates. Terms of appointment should mirror the school year.
- The City should provide governor training.
- The City could consider giving preference to Aldermen and Common Councilmen for any sponsor vacancies on Local Governing Bodies.

RECEIVED

10. **QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE BOARD** There were no questions.

11. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT City Appointed Governor – City Academy Hackney

The Chairman noted that a candidate had been identified for the City appointed governor vacancy on the Board of the City Academy Hackney. She noted that the candidate's application had been circulated to Members outside of the meeting and further provided as a tabled paper. Members unanimously agreed that Anuja Dhir should be appointed for a four year term.

RESOLVED, that Anuja Dhir be appointed as a City of London Corporation sponsor governor of City Academy Hackney for a four year term.

Chairmanship of City Academy Hackney

The Chairman noted that she had been serving as interim Chair of City Academy Hackney until such time the academy co-sponsor KPMG identified a candidate to serve as Chair of the governing body. A KPMG candidate had now been identified, and so the Chairman requested the endorsement of the Education Board for that candidate to be appointed Chair of the City Academy Hackney Governing Body at the end of the school year 2016/17.

RESOLVED, that the term of the KPMG candidate for Chair of City Academy Hackney governing body be brought forward one year, to commence in time for the 2017/18 school year.

12. **EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC**

RESOLVED – That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act.

13. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES

The non-public minutes of the meeting held on 15 September 2016 were approved as a correct record.

14. GRANT FUNDING FOR CHRIST'S HOSPITAL AND KING EDWARD'S SCHOOL WITLEY

Henry Colthurst took the chair for the duration of this item.

Members considered a report of the Town Clerk on grant funding for Christ's Hospital and King Edward's School Witley.

During the course of the item, Members agreed to extend the duration of meeting, as per Standing Order (40), until all items of business had been dealt with.

15. ACTION TAKEN SINCE THE LAST MEETING

Members received a report of the Town Clerk detailing action taken since the last meeting.

RECEIVED

16. NON PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE BOARD

There were no questions.

17. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED

There were no items of urgent business.

The meeting ended	at 5.20 pm		
Chairman			

Contact Officer: Alistair MacLellan Alistair.MacLellan@cityoflondon.gov.uk